HOUSE FI NANCE COWM TTEE
March 5, 2014
8:34 a.m

8:34: 21 AM

CALL TO ORDER

Co-Chair Stoltze called the House Finance Conmmittee neeting
to order at 8:34 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representati ve Al an Austernan, Co-Chair
Representative Mark Neuman, Vice-Chair
Represent ati ve Bryce Edgnon
Representative Les Gara

Representative David Guttenberg
Representati ve Li ndsey Hol nes
Representative Cathy Minoz
Representative Steve Thonpson
Representative Tanm e WI son

VEMBERS ABSENT

Representative Ma Costello
Representative Bill Stoltze

ALSO PRESENT

Representative Neal Foster; Senator Peter M cciche; Paul
Labolle, Staff, Representative Foster; Joe Mchel, Staff
Representati ve Bill Stoltze; Donal d Donal d Bul | ock,
Legi slative Counsel, Division of Legal and Research
Ser vi ces, Legislative Affairs Agency; Bruce Tangenan,
Deputy Conmi ssioner, Tax Division, Departnment of Revenue.

PRESENT VI A TELECONFERENCE

Joy Baker, Port of Nonme; Scott Pexton, Departnent of
Nat ural Resources; Johanna Bales, Deputy D rector, Tax
Di vision, Departnent of Revenue; Maya Sal ganek, Director,
Film Program at University of Alaska Fairbanks, Fairbanks;
M chael Collier, Random Acronynms, Anchorage; D.K Johnston,
Tri-Seven Pictures, Anchorage; Steven Rychetnik, Omer of
Sprocket heads, Anchorage; Charles Hewitt, Mrror Studios,

House Fi nance Conmmittee 1 03/05/14 8:34 A M



Anchorage; Ron Holnstrom Actors in Alaska;, Eric Lizer,
International Alliance of Theatrical Stage Enployees Loca
918; Brad Swenson, Goldring Goup, Wisilla; Kavel i na
Torres, North Pole; Deborah Schildt, Alaska Film G oup,
Anchor age; Stacey Bol es, Al aska New Medi a, Anchor age.

SUMVARY
HB 112 REPEAL FI LM PRODUCTI ON TAX CREDI T

HB 112 was HEARD and HELD in conmmttee for
further consideration.

HB 181 M NI NG LI CENSE REVENUE; REVENUE SHARI NG

HB 181 was HEARD and HELD in conmmttee for
further consideration.

#hb181
HOUSE BI LL NO. 181

"An Act relating to the accounting for noney received
by the state fromthe mning license tax, mning |ease
paynents, and royalties from mning on state tide and
subnerged land seaward of a nunicipality, and the
avai lability of that noney for appropriation to
certain boroughs and nunicipalities outside of a

bor ough. "
8:35: 04 AM
REPRESENTATI VE  NEAL  FOSTER, introduced hinself. He
introduced his PowerPoint presentation: "HB 181 Mning

Li cense Revenue Tax" (copy on file). He began with slide 2:
"Bill Language."

"An Act relating to the accounting for noney received
by the state fromthe mning license tax, mning |ease
paynments, and royalties from mning on state tide and
subnerged land wthin a nunicipality, and the
avai lability of that noney for appropriation to
certain boroughs and nunicipalities outside of a
bor ough. "

Representative Foster continued with slide 3: "Language
Clarification."

House Fi nance Conmmittee 2 03/05/14 8:34 A M



e Two types of revenue:
0 Mning | ease paynents and royalties = Conpetitive
bids for tracts of off-shore mning areas
o Mning license = Tax on profits

e "State tide and subnerged | and" = Of-shore
8:37:23 AM
Representative Foster discussed slide 4: "Bill in Laynen's
Terms. "

* By request of:
o Comm ssioner of Commerce Comunity and Economc
Devel opnment, or
o Conmi ssioner of Departnment of Natural Resources

e Legislature nmay appropriate funds:
o From m ning | eases and taxes
o To municipalities
o If the mning occurs off-shore and in nunicipal
boundari es

8:38:20 AM

Representative Foster continued with slide 5: "Reason for
Legi slation."

e State revenue associated with nmineral |ease sales:
o Of-shore and within Nonme's mnunici pal boundaries
o have brought in over $700,000 in recent years to
the State
* Caused increased traffic in Nonme's port and harbor

* Need nore infrastructure and personnel

8:39: 01 AM
Representative Foster continued wth slide 6: "Current
Funding.” The funding nechanism included revenue from

m ning | ease, rents and m ning taxes.

Representative Foster pointed to slide 7: "Proposed
Funding.” One half of the revenue was placed in the
Per manent Fund, while the other half went to the general
fund. The Ilegislation proposed that up to half of the
general fund portion would be allocated to nunicipalities.

8:39:32 AM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 3 03/05/14 8:34 A M



Representative Foster discussed slide 8: "Mneral |ease
rental, royalties, and royalty sale proceeds in the None
area for 2011-2013." The slide's data was conpiled by the
Department of Natural Resources. He stated that the revenue
was cal cul ated based on | eases within None's boundaries. He
noted that rents, royalties and | ease sales in 2011 equal ed
$704,676. None's share based on the actual allocation for
t he sane year woul d be $176, 169.

8:40: 48 AM

Representative Foster discussed slide 9: "So what do we
mean when we say off-shore but within a nunicipality's
boundari es?" He di scussed the map's details.

8:41: 26 AM

Representative Foster skipped to slide 11: "2011 None
O fshore Lease Sale Tract Location Map." The nmap depicted
the different tracts of |ease sale areas. He stated that
the City of Nonme's boundaries extended off-shore. He
explained that the |ease sales inpacted None's port and
harbor. The bill requested a snmall area be subject to the
| egi sl ati on.

8:42: 09 AM

Representative Foster discussed slide 12: "None Beach
Public Mning Areas." He explained that the yellow Iline
illustrated None's boundary. He stated that Nonme's boundary
extended approximately 1-2 mles fromthe shore.

8:42:52 AM

Representative Foster noved the map on slide 13. He
expl ained the docks identified on the map and nentioned
that None would require a "mddle dock” to address the
i ncreased congesti on.

8:43:17 AM

Representative Foster pointed to slide 14: "Area Wthin the
Miuni ci pality."

« \What nmkes None unique is its nunicipal boundaries go
of f-shore

House Fi nance Conmmittee 4 03/05/14 8:34 A M



« None cannot inpose a property tax on open water

e Legislation would only capture revenue from the | eases
that fall within the nunicipal boundary

e This area is small conpared to the total m ning |eases
that affect Nome's port and harbor.

8:43:54 AM

Representative Foster discussed slide 15: "Port Vessel
Traffic.” He stated that |ease sales began in 2005. He
noted the graph's depiction of increased traffic due to
| ease sal es.

8:44:19 AM

Representative Fost er di scussed slide 16: "Effects
| ncreased Traffic."

* Increased traffic of smaller vessels are driving the
need for expansion of the inner harbor

* As leases are developed l|larger vessels (too big for
the inner harbor) are conpeting for already cranped
space in the outer port's two docks

* The nunber of dredges, vehicles and equi pnment being
shipped in for the mning industry is exacerbating the
del ays and congestion at the port

8:44. 58 AM
Representative Foster concluded wth slide 17: "Fina
Message. "

« HB 181 offers one small portion of relief for

i nfrastructure and fundi ng needs

* Yesterday the Departnment notified us that there are no
nore | ease sal es planned within None's boundari es

e This nmeans that going forward there would only be
about $4 thousand per year in revenue available to the
Cty. The funding request for the planned m ddl e dock
alone is $3 mllion

* Sol utions:

0 Retroactivity
0 Area Expansion
o Capital Request

8:46: 50 AM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 5 03/05/14 8:34 A M



Representative Hol mes comented that two areas in the state
were interested in offshore mning |eases. She asked about
the type of mining occurring in None.

PAUL LABOLLE, STAFF, REPRESENTATIVE FOSTER, responded that
suction and traditional dredging conprised Nonme's offshore
m ni ng practices.

Representati ve Hol mes asked about the inpact on Nonme of the
increased nunber of dockings. She wondered about the
proposed har bor changes.

8:48: 12 AM

M. Labolle responded that 52 percent of the vessels
docking in Nonme were associated with the |eases, with the
remai nder associated with recreational mning areas | ocated
outside of the |ease boundary.

8:49:19 AM

Representative WIson asked about the nechanism used to
determ ne the harbor's users.

M. Labolle replied that M. Baker was the best person to
answer the question.

JOY BAKER, PORT OF NOME (via teleconference), asked the
representative to repeat her question.

Representative WIson repeated her question. She wondered
about the wutilization and upgrades for the harbor. She
asked about a vessel tax that would address those issues.

Ms. Baker replied that the city had an indication of users
of the harbors in the port. She stated that the snaller
dredgers wutilized the recreational areas outlined by the
Departnent of Natural Resources. She nentioned a nedium
sized fleet that used the harbor when working the off-shore
| eases. She noted the increase in larger vessels that were
too deep for the harbor and were crowding the already
congested docks at the port. She stated that the vol une of
the inner harbor was the initial concern, but the
congestion now affected both facilities.

8:51:33 AM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 6 03/05/14 8:34 A M



Representative Wl son asked if the vessels could be charged
a fee that would be used to add to or maintain the harbor.

Ms. Baker replied that port fees were charged and increased
in 2012 and 2013 and the nunicipality was considering
another tariff increase. She stated that the fees could not
be so large that snmaller vessels could not afford them

8:52: 57 AM

Vi ce- Chair Neurman asked about sales tax in None.
Representative Foster stated that Nonme had a sal es tax.

Vi ce-Chair Neuman asked the percentage.

Representati ve Newman replied 5 percent.

Representative Neuman stated that he watched the television
show "Bering Sea Cold," which was based out of Nome. He
di scussed the mneral royalty sales. He noted that the
sales in 2011 were different from other years. He asked how

| ong the | eases were.

Representative Foster replied that the | eases were 10 to 20
years.

8:54:41 AM

SCOTT  PEXTON, DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOQURCES (via
tel econference), replied that the off-shore mning |eases
could be issued for 10-year to 20-year terns.

Vice-Chair Neuman stated that gold was a boom and bust
mning industry. He asked about the effect on the
department related to the | eases. He asked how nmuch of the
| ease revenue covered the departnment's expenses.

8:55:54 AM

M. Pexton replied that he did not have the exact figures
requsted. Precise tine would be difficult to account for,
but he did not anticipate a great expense would be
di scovered. He stated that the mpjority of the work
occurred during the actual |ease sale.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 7 03/05/14 8:34 A M



8:57:08 AM

Vice-Chair Neuman noted that the statutorily required
mandat e i ncluded coverage of the managenent of the | eases.
He imagined that additional revenue could cover the
muni ci pality costs related to building and maintaining
infrastructure for the port of None.

8:57: 38 AM

Representative Foster offered to work with the departnent
on sone exact figures.

8:57: 50 AM

Representative Minoz asked about mning activity off the
coast of Yakutat. She wondered why the community was not
included in the organization for coverage of their harbor
costs.

M. Labolle replied that |ease sales in Yakutat did not
occur within the nunicipal boundary.

Representati ve Munoz asked to know nore about the off-shore
m ni ng practices and boundaries in Yakutat.

M. Labolle was unsure about specifics. He deferred the
guestion to the departnent.

8:59: 04 AM

M. Pexton replied that nost of the offshore activity in
Cape Yakataga was associated with tide and subnerged |and
mning clains. He stated that the activity was mninmal for
off-shore mning leases; very little activity conpared to
None.

Representative CQuttenberg wondered how the definition of
muni ci palities was applied in the proposed | egislation.

M. Labolle replied that all incorporated nunicipalities
were included. Second class cities were included.

Representative Cuttenberg asked about a smaller isolated

area and |ease sales. He wondered about incorporation of
the municipality for the | ease paynents.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 8 03/05/14 8:34 A M



M. Labolle replied that the bill was not witten as
retroactive. Lease sales, wthout boundaries established,
could participate. He noted that many comrunity boundaries
were based on tides as opposed to None's property corners
t hat were based on real space.

9:01: 31 AM

Representative Gara opined that the problens faced in None
were understated by the sponsor. He stated that the food
bank was often raided by mners in the area for a short
period of tine each year. He asked about the maxi num anount
of nmoney sought by None as revenue sharing from the m ning
t ax.

Representative Foster replied that the maximum anount
sought would be $740 thousand over a three-year period. If
the "up to 50 percent" was applied, $185 thousand woul d be
the rmaximum anmount over the sanme tinme period. He
appreciated the question although the revenue sharing
contribution was a snmall step in the direction of a
sol uti on.

9:03: 37 AM

M. Labolle highlighted the point that the $185 thousand
was estimated from the conbination of the sale of the
initial |ease and subsequent rents and royalties, which
were snall reoccurring paynents.

9: 04: 35 AM

Representative Gara discussed the state's antiquated m ning
tax policies for |arge scale m ning operations.

9:05: 15 AM

Co- Chai r Austerman OPENED public testinony.
Co- Chair Austerman CLOSED public testinony.

HB 181 was HEARD and HELD in commttee for further
consi derati on.

9: 05: 58 AM
AT EASE

House Fi nance Conmmittee 9 03/05/14 8:34 A M



9:08: 21 AM
RECONVENED

#hb112
HOUSE BI LL NO. 112

"An Act repealing the film production tax credit;
providing for an effective date by repealing the
effective dates of secs. 31 - 33, ch. 51, SLA 2012

and providing for an effective date.”

9:08: 29 AM

Vice-Chair Neuman MOVED to ADOPT the proposed committee
substitute for HB 112, Wrk Draft 28-LS0402/C (Bull ock
3/ 4/ 14). Representative Thonpson OBJECTED for discussion.

JOE M CHEL, STAFF REPRESENTATIVE BILL STOLTZE, stated that
the workdraft was simlar to the one presented in the prior
year. Legislation enacted in 2012 for two prograns
necessitated the CS and its proposed repeal of the
production filmtax credit.

DONALD BULLOCK, LEG SLATIVE COUNSEL, DI VISION OF LEGAL AND
RESEARCH SERVI CES, LEGQ SLATIVE AFFAI RS AGENCY detailed the
CS. He stated nmmjor changes that occurred in 2012 including
moving the film credits to the Departnent of Revenue from
the Depart nent of Conmer ce, Community and Econom c
Devel opnent. Anot her change expanded the application of the
credit to all taxes. The original credit applied to the
corporation incone tax alone. Effective July 1, 2013, the
credit was applicable to any tax, which increased the
amount to $200 million in potential general fund | osses.
Wth the changes that took effect in 2013, the original

bill repealed the provisions that allowed the credit to
apply against all taxes and allowed for transfer of the
programto the Departnent of Revenue. The original bill did

not pass last year, which allowed the sections involving
the transfer and broader application of the credit to take
effect July 1, 2013. The CS nust undo the effect of the
process by repealing the current film program in the
Departnment of Revenue that provided a credit up to $200
mllion.

9:12:48 AM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 10 03/05/14 8:34 A M



M. Bullock discussed sections 1 and 2 of the bill, which
di scussed the fisheries landing and business tax. Those
taxes allowed nunicipalities a portion of the revenue. He
informed the comittee that the Departnment of Revenue
cal cul ated the revenue sharing for municipalities prior to
the application of credits. Sections 1 and 2 renoved the
reference to AS.43.98.030, which was the statute that
al l oned the Departnment of Revenue to issue the credits.

M. Bullock discussed section 3 of the CS. He noted that
the section was not immediately repealed. The section
allowed for the collection of credits that should not have
been issued or an anmount of damages caused as a result of
the film production tax credits. The section would allow
the departnment time to recover credits due back to the
state.

9:14: 09 AM

M. Bullock continued with section 4 and the requirenent
that the Legislative Budget and Audit (LB&A) division
review the filmcredit program and report their findings to
the legislature. He noted that statute AS. 43.98.030 all owed
the departnent to issue the credits. Additional statutes
allowed the authority to the Departnent of Revenue to
operate the film office and designate the criteria used for
credit qualification and operation of the program All of
the sections of the law would be repealed. He noted that
section 44.33.231(c) was the section that addressed the
Department of Conmerce, Community and Econom ¢ Devel opnent
and its assistance in mnaging the program wth the
Department of Revenue. Since the film credit program would
be elimnated, the need for assistance was no |onger
rel evant.

9:15:32 AM

M. Bullock stated that section 5 extended the repeal date
for the recovery of the film production tax credit. After
the credit was elimnated, the section would remain in
effect until 2020.

9:15: 58 AM

M. Bullock discussed section 6 and the repeal of the
provisions in the 2012 law. Section 7 was different from
| ast year's proposed l|legislation due to the new program in

House Fi nance Conmmittee 11 03/05/14 8:34 A M



effect as of July 1, 2013. Section 7 noted that if a person
received qualification prior to July 1, 2031, the credit
woul d continue to be evaluated by the departnent. Section 2
referred to the program that took effect July 1, 2013
stating that a notice of qualification received prior to
the effective date of July 1, 2014 would allow continuing
revi ew of expenditures by the Departnent of Revenue.

M. Bullock noved to subsection (b) on page 3 of the CS. He
noted that the subsection allowed the credit, once received
to offset taxes or be sold or exchanged for a transferable
tax credit within 3 years. Because the credits could be
transferred, the market would remain healthy. He provided
an exanple of credit exchange with an oil conpany. He added
that subsection (c) stated that certain circunstances
allowed the departnment to hold a «credit that would
ot herwi se be pai d.

M. Bullock stated that section 8 repealed sections of the
2012 law that i ncluded effective dates no |onger
appl i cable. He provided an exanpl e.

9:18:49 AM

M. Bullock explained that section 9 addressed the Act's
effective date. He stated that section 5 included the
del ayed repeal date for the collection statute. Section 10
stated that the bill would take effect imedi ately except
for the special effective dates listed in section 9. He
noted that the Departnment of Revenue was present to answer
speci fic questions about the adm nistration of the tax.

9:19:32 AM

Representative Gara clarified that the House Finance
Commttee substantially rewote the film tax «credit
provisions to limt the amount of noney to mllion-dollar
actors and actresses. He asked if that provision renained
in current |aw

M. Bullock replied that adjustnments were nmde to the
credits that allowed a greater enphasis on the use of
Al askan talent and reduced the credit available for above
the line expenditures related to witers and directors. He
believed that the provisions benefitting Al askans were
i ncluded in the 2012 bill.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 12 03/05/14 8:34 A M



9:20: 53 AM

BRUCE TANGEMAN, DEPUTY COW SSI ONER, TAX DI VI SI ON,
DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE was avail abl e to answer questi ons.

Representative Gara stated that when a corporation visited
Al aska, they were obligated to pay corporate tax as a C
corporation. He asked for an estimate of corporate tax
revenue taken by the departnent.

M. Tangeman deferred the question to the tax division.

JOHANNA BALES, DEPUTY DI RECTOR, TAX DI VI SI ON, DEPARTMENT OF
REVENUE (via teleconference), responded that conpanies
eligible for the tax credits were not corporate inconme tax
payers. No additional corporate incone tax revenue was seen
as a result of the «credit addressed in the proposed
| egi sl ation.

Representative Gara asked about the corporate tax which
applied to C-corporations alone. He asked if the film
conpani es were C-corporations.

Ms. Bales replied that even a C-corporation would not apply
due to the tinme spent filmng in Al aska. She stated that
nost of the productions conpanies were Limted Liability
Cor porations (LLC).

Representative Gara understood that some states wutilized
revenue for work created in Al aska. He noted that part of
the revenue obtained from sone C-corporations had been
partially created in Al aska. He asked if the departnent had
made an effort to tax the C-corporations.

9:24:25 AM

Ms. Bales replied that nobst production expenses for the
filmindustry were performed by conpanies that were not C
corporations. The conpanies generally sold the rights for
the productions to the large distributors |ike Paranmunt or
Fox. The production conpanies thenselves were not C
corporations and were not subject to tax. She agreed that a
portion of revenue earned while in Al aska was taxed by the
departnent, but only for C-corporations. She stated that he
depart nent had accurate awareness of the conpanies
producing in the state and the nature of their business;
nost if not all were LLC

House Fi nance Conmmittee 13 03/05/14 8:34 A M



Representative Gara wondered why the departnent had not
col |l ected any revenue from C-cor porations.

Ms. Bales replied that the state would collect tax returns
from C-corporations, but signi ficant tax from the
productions in the state had not been coll ect ed.

Representative Gara requested current data regarding the
revenues collected for the filmindustry in Al aska.

9:26: 22 AM

Representative CQuttenberg asked about the audit perforned
| ast year.

M. Mchel replied that the LB&A audit control nunber for
| ast year's audit was 08-30066-12.

Representative CQuttenberg asked for audi t hi ghl i ghts
related to econom c benefit.

M. Mchel replied that the audit in 2012 displayed a
multiplier effect when a conpany did business and spent
noney in the state. He stated that recomendations and
conclusions of the audit would be nade available to the
committee nenbers. The audit did not display a positive
fiscal inpact to the state. The corporations did not pay
corporate incone tax. He noted that the state did not
receive the anmount of incone in tax revenue required to
counter the expense of the tax credits. He stated that sone
Al askan busi nesses benefitted froma film conpany conming to
t he state.

Representative GQuttenberg understood that the film tax
credit notion was in its infancy and a spontaneous eruption
of tax revenue could not be expected.

9:29: 22 AM

Representative Quttenberg asked about a calculation of an
increase in applications for the tax credits in 2013. He
wondered about a rise in industry activity.

M. Tangeman replied that the applications for the tax

credits were fairly consistent during the tinme that the
departnent had overseen the process.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 14 03/05/14 8:34 A M



Representative Quttenberg asked if the film conpanies had
three years to file for credits.

M. Tangeman replied that $40 thousand in credits were
i ssued. He noted that $60 million in pre-approved projects
were pending. Mst of the qualifications occurred when the
program was under the Department of Conmerce, Community and
Econom ¢ Devel opnent. The Departnment of Revenue continued
t he pre-approval process.

Representative Guttenberg wondered about the public's
vi ewpoi nt on the benefits of the tax credit program

9:30: 59 AM

MAYA SALGANEK, DI RECTOR, FILM PROGRAM AT UN VERSITY OF
ALASKA FAI RBANKS, FAIRBANKS (via teleconference), spoke in
support of tax credits for the filmindustry. She testified
in opposition to the legislation. The wuniversity program
had seen a 67 percent increase in its filmclass enroll nment
since 2008. She stated that projects produced by the
students were recognized nationally and the students were
excited about their prospects and enploynent by the film
i ndustry. She believed that the film tax incentive program
connected industry nmenbers with the students in Fairbanks.
She opined that a loss of the tax incentive would nean a
| oss of students. She spoke about the investnent made by
the university for film students that was the result of the
i ncentive program

9: 35: 53 AM

M CHAEL COLLI ER, RANDOM  ACRONYMS, ANCHORACGE (via
tel econference), discussed the economc potential of the
film industry in Al aska. He stated opposition to the
| egi sl ation, which he believed was an effort to cripple a
burgeoni ng industry. He stated that his production conpany
was grow ng quickly; the film technicians benefitted
substantially. He pointed out that the rental car agencies
al so benefitted. He stated that the filmng allowed for the
creation of new jobs in Al aska. He spoke about New Mexico
and the beneficial use of the film industry and tax
credits. He believed that each production represented
mllions of dollars spent in state and he conpared the film
i ndustry to tourism

House Fi nance Conmmittee 15 03/05/14 8:34 A M



9:40: 22 AM

Representative (Quttenberg appreciated the benefit of
Al askans telling their own story.

9:40: 43 AM

D. K. JOHNSTON, TRI - SEVEN Pl CTURES, ANCHORAGE (via
tel econference), voiced opposition to the bill. He stated
that the film industry jobs <created in Al aska were
substantial and growing. He urged the commttee nenbers to
vot e agai nst the passage of the bill.

9:42: 37 AM

STEVEN RYCHETNI K, OWMER OF SPROCKETHEADS, ANCHORAGE (via
tel econference), testified in opposition to the bill. He
stated that he was a lifelong Alaska and a film naking
prof essional since 1977. He noted that the filmtax credit
program was vetted and the new and inproved program was
signed into law until 2023. He stated that the laws
progress was halted by Co-Chair Stoltze. He stressed that
HB 112 was the sequel that no one wanted to see. He opined
that the repeal was risky for producers interested in
Al aska.

9:45: 35 AM
CHARLES HEW TT, M RROR STUDI CS, ANCHORAGE (via
t el econference), testified in opposi tion to t he

legislation. He requested tine for the tax incentive
program to prove itself. He infornmed the commttee that he
was a Republican and owner of a post-production facility in
Anchorage. He noted the challenge of convincing out-of-
state colleagues to film in Alaska because of the
additional costs associated with the geographic | ocation.
The film tax credit program opened doors and allowed for
the attraction of a new industry to the state while
showcasi ng Al aska to the rest of the world.

9:47:51 AM

RON HOLMSTROM  ACTORS |IN ALASKA (via teleconference),
testified in opposition to the legislation. He stated that
the initial bill allowed support for the film industry. He
informed the committee that offers to film in Al aska had
been withdrawn follow ng the introduction of the repeal. He

House Fi nance Conmmittee 16 03/05/14 8:34 A M



noted that sone films showcasing Al aska were filmed in Utah
or lceland because of the instability introduced by the
bill. He wished that the bill would revert to its origina
form where it attracted mllions of dollars to the state
and put many Al askans to work with the filmindustry.

9:50: 00 AM

ERIC LIZER, | NTERNATIONAL ALLIANCE OF THEATRI CAL STAGE
EMPLOYEES LOCAL 918 (via teleconference), testified in
opposition to the legislation. He stated that his union had
28 nmenbers prior to the introduction of tax credits for the
filmindustry. Followng the tax credit program nenbership
rose to 85 nenbers. He considered the filmindustry a state
resource because of the taxes and revenues yielded from
film industry visitors. He spoke about the popularity of
tel evi sion shows and novies featuring Al aska.

9: 55: 36 AM

BRAD SVENSON, GOLDRI NG GROUP, WASILLA (via tel econference),
testified in opposition to the legislation. He expressed
excitement about Kkeeping the film tax program alive. He
spoke about the conpetitive nature in Al aska. He noted that
the cost of doing business in Al aska was higher than other
states. He explained that the film tax incentive program
al l owed the industry to affordably operate in-state.

9:57:23 AM

KAVELI NA TORRES, NORTH POLE (via teleconference), testified
in opposition to the legislation. She spoke about the many
different enploynent opportunities offered to her as a
writer because of the film industry tax credits. She spoke
about the inportance of sharing the Al aska story.

10: 02: 19 AM

DEBORAH  SCHI LDT, ALASKA FI LM GROUP, ANCHORACGE (vi a
t el econf erence), testified in opposi tion to t he
| egi slation. She stated that the Alaska Film G oup was the
state's largest nonprofit trade association of film and
video professionals. She noted the positive inpacts
received by nenbers as a result of the film tax credits.
She believed that the film production dollars created a
healthy and diversified Al askan econony. Al askan-based
corporations were able to utilize the credits to bring

House Fi nance Conmmittee 17 03/05/14 8:34 A M



savings to their bottom line, which allowed businesses to
grow and hire additional enployees. She spoke to the inpact
of film production in Alaskan comunities such as
Anchorage, Barrow, Eagle River, Fairbanks, Ketchikan, None,
Juneau, Palnmer, Sitka, Sutton and Wasill a.

10: 05: 57 AM

STACEY BOLES, ALASKA NEW MEDI A, ANCHORAGE (via
t el econf erence), testified in opposi tion to t he
| egi sl ation. She spoke about the interest in film education
by students in Al aska. She stated that she had prepared
students for entry-level positions in the filmindustry and
supported their advancenent . She spoke about t he
opportunities for advancenent in the industry. She
menti oned the value of the Al askan crewnenber in the film
industry. She wurged the commttee to vote against the
| egi sl ation.

10: 08: 28 AM

Co- Chair Austerman CLOSED public testinony.

Representative WIson asked why residency was established
at 30 days for the filmindustry.

Representative Gara noted one class of people that would
qualify for a credit if they net the residency requirenents
used by the Permanent Fund Di vi dend (PFD) program

Co-Chair Austerman asked for laynen's ternms describing
sections 1 and 2 of the CS

M. Mchel replied that the sections were added after
consultation with the Departnment of Revenue due to concern
from the nunicipalities regarding their share of revenue
from the fishery landing tax. He stated that the
muni ci pality took their share prior to the application of a
tax credit. The municipalities were held harm ess under
sections 1 and 2.

10: 10: 59 AM

Vi ce-Chair Neuman discussed the audit perforned by LB&A
(copy on file). He noted that the credits available to non-
residents conprised 54 percent of the credits issued. He
stated that the data showed that nost enployees hired were

House Fi nance Conmmittee 18 03/05/14 8:34 A M



non- Al askans. He wondered if the audit findings were
researched and whet her inprovenents had been di scovered.

M. Mchel replied that the information conparing resident
to non-resident wages was not avail abl e.

Representati ve Thonpson W THDREW hi s OBJECTI ON. There being
NO OBJECTION, it was so ordered. The CS was adopt ed.

#
ADJ OURNVENT

10:12: 35 AM

The neeting was adjourned at 10:12 a.m

House Fi nance Conmmittee 19 03/05/14 8:34 A M



